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          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Welcome to the

          3  Land Use Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public Siting

          4  and Maritime Uses. I'm Jessica Lappin. We're joined

          5  by Council Member Miguel Martinez of Manhattan,

          6  Council Member John Liu of Queens, Council Member

          7  Annabel Palma of the Bronx and Council Member Maria

          8  del Carmen Arroyo of the Bronx.

          9                 We're going to begin today by opening

         10  the hearing on Land Use Item No. 464, which is 23

         11  Park Place, which is located in Council Member

         12  Gerson's district, and invite Mike Silberman from

         13  the Landmarks Commission to come and testify. This

         14  sergeant will take that from you. Thank you very

         15  much. You can begin.

         16                 MR. SILBERMAN: Good morning, Chair

         17  Lappin, honorable Council members. This testimony

         18  will actually encompass both 23 and 25 Park Place.

         19  We designated them together. So, I'll just do it

         20  once, if you want I can repeat it again for the

         21  record.

         22                 My name is Mark Silberman. I'm

         23  General Counsel to the Landmarks Preservation

         24  Commission, and I'm here testifying on behalf of

         25  Ronda Wist, who could not be here. I'm here to

                                                            4

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  testify on the Commission's designation 23 and 25

          3  Park Place in Manhattan.

          4                 On January 16th, 2007, the Landmarks

          5  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          6  designations. Four people spoke in favor, including

          7  representatives of Community Board 1, the Historic

          8  Districts Council, the Metropolitan Chapter of the

          9  Victorian Society of America and the Municipal Arts

         10  Society.

         11                 A letter opposing designation from

         12  the owner of 23 Park Place was submitted on his

         13  behalf. Two representatives of the owner of 25 Park

         14  Place also testified against designation. Letters in

         15  support from Council Member Alan Gerson and

         16  Architect Robert A.M. Stern were read into the

         17  record.

         18                 The Commission previously held public

         19  hearings on 23 and 25 Park Place on December 12th,

         20  1989, April 3rd, 1990, and July 10th, 1990. On March

         21  13th, 2007, the Commission voted to designate the

         22  buildings New York City landmarks.

         23                 Built in 1856 to '57 for the dry

         24  goods firm Lathrop, Ludington & Company, by the

         25  architect Samuel Adams Warner, 23 and 25 Park Place
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          2  extend through the block to 20 and 22 Murray Street.

          3  The buildings are a handsome example of the

          4  mid-nineteenth double store-and-loft buildings that

          5  are found in the Tribeca area of Manhattan. Seven

          6  bays wide on Park Place and five bays wide on Murray

          7  Street, the five-story buildings exhibit an

          8  articulated unified facade influenced by the Italian

          9  Renaissance palazzo style prevalent in commercial

         10  architecture of the time. Portions of the original

         11  cast-iron storefronts with fluted Corinthian columns

         12  and pilasters that were manufactured by Daniel D.

         13  Badger are still visible at 23 Park Place and 20

         14  Murray Street.

         15                 Since the 1860s, the two buildings

         16  have been home to a variety of businesses such as

         17  dry goods, manufacturing and publishing firms,

         18  associations and restaurants.

         19                 The buildings also served as the

         20  headquarters for the New York Daily News from 1921

         21  to 1930.

         22                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         23  the designations.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         25                 I wanted to ask, this is something
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          2  the Commission has been looking at for a long time,

          3  and sort of I guess originally held a hearing in

          4  1989. I guess if you have a sense of why it took so

          5  long to be designated?

          6                 MR. SILBERMAN: I wasn't here at the

          7  time. I can't tell you exactly what the reasoning

          8  was back then. The Commission doesn't act on things

          9  for a variety of reasons. And the Commission has a

         10  list of heard but not designated properties,

         11  properties that over the years it has had public

         12  hearings on but hasn't acted on for a variety of

         13  reasons, it wants to get additional information,

         14  it's talking to the owners, you know, there's a

         15  variety of factors.

         16                 We have been going back to that list,

         17  and actually in the last three years have been

         18  designating other buildings in the Tribeca area that

         19  were also heard at that time.

         20                 In 2003, we designated the Tribeca

         21  South extension, which was also buildings heard at

         22  that time. We went back to designate those

         23  buildings, and more recently 325 Broadway was also

         24  one of the buildings that was heard at that time.

         25                 So, this has been something that's
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          2  been of interest, perhaps not a priority for the

          3  Commission, but in an effort to sort of move these

          4  things off that list of heard but not designated,

          5  the Commission decided to act on them.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And how many

          7  owners have there been since 1989?

          8                 MR. SILBERMAN: I can't tell you. We

          9  reached out to both of the current owners in the

         10  process of calendaring and designating this time.

         11  This building has been marked as a calendared

         12  building in the Department of Buildings' website, in

         13  their files, since 1989. So, subsequent owners --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So anybody who

         15  purchased the building since 1989 was aware that

         16  this was an item that was being considered by the

         17  Landmarks Commission for designation?

         18                 MR. SILBERMAN: They certainly should

         19  have been aware, yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

         21                 I wanted to, before I ask my

         22  colleagues if they have questions I wanted to call

         23  your attention to a letter that Council Member

         24  Gerson sent I think for all of us. He is very much

         25  in support of this item but could not be here today.
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          2  I know he tried to reach out to a number of you

          3  before, but he did indicate in his letter that this

          4  building is a wonderful example of the Italian

          5  Renaissance palazzo style, which was introduced to

          6  New York at the AT Department Store on Chambers

          7  Street by Trench and Snook.

          8                 The series of buildings on Park Place

          9  were designed by Samuel Warner and represents an era

         10  in New York City that needs to be preserved to

         11  protect our history.

         12                 Do any of my colleagues have

         13  questions?

         14                 Council Member Palma.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Good morning,

         16  Madam Chair.

         17                 Are there tenants currently living in

         18  the building?

         19                 MR. SILBERMAN: I believe there are.

         20  But I don't know for sure.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay, thank

         22  you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 MR. SILBERMAN: Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I wanted to ask

          3  Richard Dejamal, who is the owner, correct? Okay.

          4                 MR. DEJAMAL: Chair Lappin, honorable

          5  members of the City Council, first allow me to

          6  defend myself. I've never done this before, spoken

          7  in public, so excuse my nervousness. And further,

          8  allow me to defend myself. I'm not a big, bad

          9  developer. Maybe you recognize my face from the

         10  neighborhood. I'm the president of Broadway

         11  Generation. We signed a lease, family members and

         12  myself signed a lease at 250 Broadway in 1982, and

         13  we operated a retail store, Broadway Generation, for

         14  the next 18 years. Thank God we were very

         15  successful. In 1997 we purchased 23 Park Place as an

         16  insurance policy against getting put out from 250

         17  Broadway, which we had reasons to believe we would

         18  be put out, and we were put out and they didn't give

         19  us a chance to complete our construction at 23 Park

         20  Place.

         21                 So, we bought the building to

         22  ultimately move there. We did ultimately move there.

         23  We didn't get a chance to move in until May 2001,

         24  which was, as you can tell, a couple of months

         25  before September 11th.
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          2                 So, now, that's my introduction. I

          3  did attend the Landmarks meeting back in January.

          4  Before I did attend, I spent some time, I met Ronda

          5  Wist, and they were gracious enough to share their

          6  records with me. I went through the records, and I

          7  was truly perplexed. First, the most perplexing

          8  thing, I'm glad Chair Lappin brought it up, was how

          9  could you leave these buildings, or the building,

         10  it's party wall building, in a state of landmark

         11  limbo for 18 years. I don't understand that. I think

         12  if nothing else comes out from this meeting,

         13  somebody should look into this. My common sense

         14  tells me, and I don't bring professional credentials

         15  here, my common sense tells me you shouldn't leave

         16  buildings for 18 years in such a situation. And

         17  also, as Chair Lappin pointed out, true, a buyer

         18  should have known. And I'm not coming here to tell

         19  you that I didn't know or that I did know what the

         20  situation with the building is, that I didn't know

         21  doesn't make a difference because we moved into it

         22  strictly to occupy the retail premises, and

         23  unfortunately, that didn't work out. We closed the

         24  Generation after 20 years a couple of months ago,

         25  but I just want to really address the issues here,
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          2  whether this should be. Because in my examination of

          3  the records that was perplexed, I saw nothing in the

          4  records to support. Certainly there were people and

          5  organizations that said, yes, we should -- these

          6  buildings should be landmarked, but I saw nothing in

          7  the records to support it. There was no legal basis

          8  to do it. And I sent a letter. I didn't testify at

          9  that Landmarks meeting. I sent a letter. I just want

         10  to read you, because it's easier to communicate with

         11  you to read these two small paragraphs.

         12                 "Upon my review of the records last

         13  week..." -- And I distributed this to all the

         14  members of the Landmarks Commission. "upon my review

         15  of the records last week, it became clear to me why

         16  the Commission did not designate the building, our

         17  building as a New York City landmark back in July

         18  '90. The scholarly reports then submitted by

         19  Professor John Modell and Michael Zenreich, the

         20  architect, clearly and substantively pointed to a

         21  decided lack of historical or architectural

         22  significance to 23, 25 Park Place."

         23                 Now, if you look in the records,

         24  that's the only thing of substance in the records,

         25  and those were major reports. They went through all
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          2  the details and they examined whether there was

          3  historical significance or architectural

          4  significance, and then they came up in the negative

          5  and those are still in the records. And they can be

          6  examined. I can't imagine that any member of the

          7  City Council has taken a look at those reports or

          8  any of the other reasons in the record that is

          9  against this.

         10                 Now, nothing has changed. They

         11  pointed out to the Landmarks Commission, nothing has

         12  changed historically or architecturally to these

         13  buildings these past 17 years. Nothing is new.

         14  Individuals and groups, and this is important, who

         15  have advocated setting up historical districts for

         16  Tribeca have been so widely successful that there

         17  are now five separate districts designated on your

         18  website for Tribeca. There's a humungous area out

         19  there loaded with buildings that have been

         20  designated, and New York City is the better for it.

         21  And I'm not against it. And if you take a two-second

         22  look out of this building, you'll see magnificent

         23  buildings, that if it wasn't for the Landmark

         24  Commission they'd have been ripped down, and they do

         25  wonderful work, and I've always worked and lived in
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          2  this City, and I appreciate it, the record shows

          3  otherwise.

          4                 The southerly most district extends

          5  to the north side of Murray Street, so the decision

          6  was made at the time to stop these districts on the

          7  northern side of Murray Street. Now, we're on the

          8  southern side of Murray Street. And I want to also

          9  just -- that's it for my letter. I want to go to a

         10  draft that was submitted also at the meeting. I'm

         11  not going to read you 90 percent of the draft. This

         12  draft was submitted by the owners of 25 Park Place,

         13  our party-wall building, and in a couple of seconds

         14  they also pointed out in detail the building is not

         15  special. It is not a special building within the

         16  meanings of the landmark law. And that's very

         17  important. If you follow up on that, you'll see it's

         18  true.

         19                 The building is not aesthetically

         20  special. This type of building is not suitable for

         21  individual designation. I want to expound on that.

         22  The Tribeca Historic District preserves finer

         23  examples of this building type. The building is not

         24  historically special. I don't want to take more of

         25  your time, read all this here, but I want to read
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          2  the most important paragraph. It will take me a very

          3  short while. It will take me less than a minute.

          4  This building is not, and you have to really hear

          5  this, this building is not suitable for individual

          6  designation. You wouldn't believe who said. This.

          7  You wouldn't believe who said this. The Commission

          8  has decided in the past that this type of building

          9  in Tribeca is not suitable for individual

         10  designation. What they have set up is big districts

         11  that encompass buildings on this. They decided this

         12  on their own. On September 19th, 1989 the Commission

         13  held a public hearing on the designation as

         14  individual landmarks, and that's what we're here

         15  for, an individual landmark, of mid-block groups of

         16  13 five-story mid-19th century store and lost

         17  buildings on Warren Street, the South Side of

         18  Chambers Street, the North side of Murray Street,

         19  between Church and West Broadway.

         20                 Listen to this: Representatives from

         21  the Municipal Arts Society. The New York Landmarks

         22  Conservancy, and Historic Districts Council

         23  testified that these individual buildings did not

         24  possess qualities necessary to qualify them for

         25  individual landmarked status, but should comprise
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          2  either an extension of Tribeca South Historic

          3  District, or as a separate historic district. The

          4  buildings were later included in Tribeca South

          5  Historic District designated in 2002. So, why are we

          6  here designating individual buildings after these

          7  people who were advocating today said it shouldn't

          8  have been done back then.

          9                 Those who testified in September 1989

         10  hearing stated that while the buildings are

         11  characteristic of wholesale commercial district that

         12  once dominated the area, they are interesting only

         13  as such and do not possess the qualities necessary

         14  to qualify them for individual landmark status.

         15  Municipal Art Society representative stated that

         16  these store and loft warehouses do not possess

         17  qualities necessary to qualify them for individual

         18  landmark status, and in this case, the whole is

         19  greater than the sum of the parts. The Speaker for

         20  the New York Landmark Conservancy concurred that the

         21  buildings do not warrant individual designation as

         22  landmarks. Ed Kirkland speaking on behalf of himself

         23  in Historic Districts Council said that the group of

         24  buildings at issue form a street scape but most of

         25  them are not worthy of individual landmark
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          2  designation, that the group should have been treated

          3  as part of a district.

          4                 In 2002, the Commission approved an

          5  extension of the Tribeca Historic District in an

          6  alternative to designating these buildings

          7  individual landmarks, as described in Tribeca South

          8  Historic District. The district is comprised of 28

          9  -- et cetera. Mr. Zenreich pointed out -- okay, I'm

         10  going to cut that short, but I just want to preclude

         11  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Yes, well, we're

         13  going to have some dialogue because I think what

         14  that testimony reflected was a desire at the time by

         15  those organizations for this building be included in

         16  the historic district.

         17                 It's not that they didn't think these

         18  buildings didn't have merit. I want to make that

         19  clear for the record. It's not that they didn't

         20  think these buildings should be designated. They

         21  very, very strongly believe these buildings should

         22  be designated. Their argument was that at the time

         23  when a historic district was being considered out of

         24  fear that the Commission would not come back and

         25  designate these at a later time, that they were
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          2  going to be excluded from the district. So, I just

          3  want to be clear, it wasn't that these preservation

          4  organizations are not saying these buildings were

          5  worthy. They were saying they were incredibly worthy

          6  of being designated. They were advocating for their

          7  designation at that time in a different way.

          8                 So, I mean, I appreciate what you're

          9  saying but at that time when a historic district was

         10  being considered, that was what they were saying, as

         11  opposed to now, where they are supportive of this

         12  designation.

         13                 MR. DEJAMAL: I just want to answer

         14  the question you asked the person who was here

         15  previously testifying, why suddenly we came back up

         16  on the calendar, and I believe the reason is because

         17  the previous owner of 25 Park Place recently put his

         18  building up for sale in early spring and a bunch of

         19  people came looking for it, and I guess the

         20  Landmarks Commission heard about it, and now after

         21  18 years they put the thing back on the calendar,

         22  and it did change hands and there is a new owner in

         23  there.

         24                 But I just want to conclude with the

         25  letter I received from Chairman Tierney. This was
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          2  his findings and his designation, and basically what

          3  the letter says is, you heard it believe it or not

          4  today, you heard it a couple of times already,

          5  because the only thing that keeps getting put forth

          6  to designate these buildings is the physical

          7  description of the building. And that's what he says

          8  over here. He just gives you a physical description

          9  of the building. Other than, and I'll just read the

         10  first three lines, which is not a physical

         11  description, it says they were constructed for a dry

         12  goods firm Lathrop Ludington. I read about Lathrop

         13  Ludington in the reports, there is not much

         14  historical significance to them. They leased it for

         15  about ten, 12 years.

         16                 Other than that, the architect has

         17  built, Samuel Warner built scores of warehouses in

         18  New York City in that time. Scores. And many of his

         19  buildings, like the Marble Collegiate Church (sic)

         20  are already landmarked, so we're not talking about

         21  preserving, you know, the Mona Lisa over here.

         22                 The only other thing new that came to

         23  light perhaps is that for 1921 to 1930, the Daily

         24  News occupied it. The Daily News I think has been

         25  around for 100 years, and if you want to set a
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          2  precedent and landmark every single building that

          3  the Daily News occupied for a short period of time,

          4  I think you have to think about it twice.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. I don't

          6  think that's the grounds for the designation. But I

          7  did want to state, and one of the reasons I asked

          8  the Commission was, you purchased this building well

          9  after this building had been calendared, and in fact

         10  there had only been three hearings. So, you must

         11  have known that this was a building that was being

         12  considered for landmark status.

         13                 MR. DEJAMAL: Oh, I'm not coming to

         14  you and telling you that this is -- I'm not pleading

         15  financial hardship about your designation. I think

         16  it's wrong. It has no basis in law. The record

         17  supports that there is no basis in law to do this. I

         18  have Chairman Tierney's findings in designation. It

         19  was sent to me in March with a cover letter on March

         20  19th, if I'm not mistaken. I don't see the basis for

         21  this decision. You have laws on the books that tell

         22  you when a building should be landmarked. You have

         23  magnificent buildings around that should be

         24  landmarked.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So your
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          2  contention is that the Landmarks Commission is not

          3  abiding by the Landmarks Law in designating this

          4  property? Is that your argument today?

          5                 MR. DEJAMAL: I'm telling you, the

          6  truth is, if I fully understood the politics that

          7  were behind this, I would be foolish to come here

          8  and to testify before you. But the truth is, I don't

          9  understand the politics of it. I've only looked at

         10  the record. It's a principle thing. And I think the

         11  Landmarks Commission shouldn't just rubber stamp

         12  everything that's brought before them.

         13                 I did have a conversation with, is it

         14  Mr. Gerson's assistant yesterday, and I sent him

         15  certain information. I convinced the fellow I spoke

         16  to that there's some big political currents. It's a

         17  small issue, but there's some big political currents

         18  over here, and unfortunately I don't understand

         19  those political currents, because I wouldn't be

         20  here. I wouldn't be here if I understood them.

         21  There's big issues over here.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Well, I know that

         23  Council member -- I spoke to the Council member

         24  yesterday, whose mother has been ill, which is why

         25  he's not here, but he feels very strongly about this
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          2  item. So, I want to make that clear to my

          3  colleagues, as well. Despite what an aid may have

          4  said to you yesterday, he is very much in support of

          5  this. And I would say that sometimes, and it's been

          6  a frustration to me, we had an item in my district,

          7  where the Landmarks Commission looks at something,

          8  or perhaps designated it a long time ago, and for

          9  whatever reason, because of inadequate funding,

         10  inadequate staff, whatever the reason, we're not

         11  able to move through and process everything that

         12  comes before them.

         13                 So, going, making an attempt to go

         14  through the backlog of properties that they have

         15  researched and reviewed over the years is something

         16  I commend the Commission for, and I think sometimes

         17  it takes far too long for these designations to

         18  happen, but that doesn't mean they shouldn't happen

         19  at all. And this is an instance where you were fully

         20  aware when you purchased the property that this was

         21  an item that was being considered.

         22                 So, I want to take this point to ask

         23  my colleagues if you have any questions?

         24                 Okay, thank you very much.

         25                 Okay, I'm going to open a hearing for
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          2  25 Park Place, but Mr. Silberman indicated, and we

          3  will submit your testimony for the record on that

          4  item as well. Is there anybody else here to testify

          5  on that property?

          6                 MR. LEVINE: I submitted my name.

          7  Michael Levine, Community Board 1. I'm testifying on

          8  23 and 25.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Right. Thank you,

         10  Mr. Levine. Please.

         11                 MR. LEVINE: Good morning, and thank

         12  you for allowing me to appear today. I will be

         13  brief. I'm going to present to you, and you heard

         14  before the Community Board 1 voted in favor of

         15  designation of 23 and 25 Park Place. You are now

         16  being presented with a resolution that was adopted

         17  by our Board on December 19th, 2006. Our Landmarks

         18  Committee considered the designation report

         19  presented to us by the Landmarks Preservation

         20  Commission by a vote of eight Board members and one

         21  public member on the Committee. This resolution was

         22  presented to the full board, and it was adopted on

         23  December 19th, 2006. Thirty-nine members of the

         24  Board in attendance, all voted unanimously in favor

         25  of the joint designations of 23, 25 Park Place.
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          2                 The resolution indicates language

          3  that was taken from the Commission's designation

          4  report, I will quickly summarize it for you. It

          5  discusses 23 and 25 Park Place.

          6                 Whereas: This building is a wonderful

          7  example of the profound impact made by the Italian

          8  Renaissance palazzo style;

          9                 Whereas: These buildings run through

         10  Murray Street creating a common facade and were

         11  designed by Samuel Adams Warner;

         12                 Whereas: Both facades are stone with

         13  large window openings above the ground floor

         14  stories;

         15                 Whereas: Each building's facade is

         16  treated similarly, with fine masonry work; and

         17                 Whereas: The window ornamentation

         18  reflects the classical design hierarchy -- I am

         19  summarizing --

         20                 Therefore, Be It Resolved: Community

         21  Board 1 commends the Landmarks Preservation

         22  Commission for its leadership on this designation

         23  and strongly endorses each designation as a New York

         24  City landmark.

         25                 We are pleased that is being
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          2  considered today by the City Council Committee, and

          3  we hope that you will recommend adoption by the full

          4  Council.

          5                 One personal note from some of the

          6  testimony you heard. These two buildings were not

          7  part of the Tribeca larger historic district, but

          8  our Landmarks Committee and our Board see these two

          9  buildings as excellent examples of period of

         10  mercantile architecture in New York City that should

         11  be preserved. They are in some ways a transition

         12  from the large scale buildings on Broadway to the

         13  smaller scale buildings in the Tribeca area that

         14  have been designated as part of the district, and we

         15  feel this joint designation is appropriate and

         16  should be approved by the City Council.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 MR. LEVINE: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, I'm going

         21  to close the hearing on 25 Park Place.

         22                 The next item on the agenda is an

         23  item in Council Member James's district, which is

         24  item LU 466. It's in the Brooklyn Botanic Gardens.

         25                 Mr. Silberman, would you like to come
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          2  and testify?

          3                 MR. SILBERMAN: Good morning, Chair

          4  Lappin and Council members. My name is Mark

          5  Silberman, General Counsel to the Landmarks

          6  Preservation Commission, and I'm here testifying on

          7  behalf of Ronda Wist, the Director.

          8                 I'm here today to testify on the

          9  Commission's designation of the laboratory

         10  administration building at the Brooklyn Botanic

         11  Garden.

         12                 On November 14th, 2006, the Landmarks

         13  Commission held a public hearing on proposed

         14  designation. Three people spoke in favor, including

         15  the president of the Brooklyn Botanic Garden and

         16  representatives of the Historic District Council and

         17  the Society for the Architecture of the City.

         18                 The Commission also received a letter

         19  in support of designation from Council Member

         20  Letitia James. On March 13th, 2007, the Commission

         21  voted to designate the building a New York City

         22  landmark.

         23                 Designed by William Kendall of the

         24  renown architectural firm of McKim, Mead & White,

         25  the Laboratory Administration Building is located
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          2  within the boundaries of the Brooklyn Botanic

          3  Garden. Built between 1912 and 1917 and constructed

          4  of concrete and brick with stucco finish and

          5  terra-cotta detailing, the Tuscan Revival-style

          6  building is capped by a striking cupola with slender

          7  rounded-arch windows. The building originally housed

          8  a physiological laboratory, an elementary

          9  laboratory, a photographic operating room and a dark

         10  room, in addition to research rooms. Today, the

         11  building is used for a botanical and horticultural

         12  library, administrative offices, a visitors' center

         13  and an auditorium.

         14                 Brooklyn Botanic Garden was created

         15  by a 1909 agreement between the City of New York and

         16  the Brooklyn Institute of Arts and Sciences, now the

         17  Brooklyn Museum. Further support came from Alfred

         18  Treadway White, a prominent Brooklyn citizen who had

         19  offered funds to create a scientific botanic garden

         20  in 1905. Brooklyn Botanic Garden is one of New York

         21  City's most significant botanic gardens and one of

         22  Brooklyn's most prominent cultural institutions. The

         23  Laboratory Administration Building is the most

         24  significant building from the garden's first phase

         25  of development.
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          2                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          3  the designation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          5                 And I would note for the record that

          6  the Council Member in this district is in support of

          7  this item as well.

          8                 Thank you. The hearing is closed.

          9                 MR. SILBERMAN: Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I'd like to open

         11  the hearing on -- well, first let me note that the

         12  Neponsit Health Center has been laid over, and open

         13  the hearing on the East Harlem Salt Storage

         14  Facility, Land Use Item No. 467. This is in Council

         15  Member Melissa Mark-Viverito's district.

         16                 And ask, this is Mr. Klein from DSNY?

         17  Thank you.

         18                 MR. KLEIN: Hi. I'm Dan Klein,

         19  Director of Real Estate for the Department of

         20  Sanitation.

         21                 The item before you this morning is

         22  the proposed relocation of the Department of

         23  Sanitation's open salt pile, located along the

         24  Harlem River, between the Triborough and Willis

         25  Avenue Bridges in Manhattan Community District 11.
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          2                 We are proposing to construct an

          3  enclosed salt storage facility and property bounded

          4  by First Avenue East 125th Street, the FDR Drive and

          5  Paladino Avenue. This site is just a few hundred

          6  feet from the existing salt pile. Use of this site

          7  is controlled by the TBTA. The salt structure would

          8  be constructed within an area surrounded by the road

          9  and ramp neck work leading to and from the

         10  Triborough Bridge. Moving the pile is essential to

         11  the start of DOT's Willis Avenue Bridge Replacement

         12  Project.

         13                 While the new facility will be

         14  located in the area known as Gouvelier Park

         15  (phonetic), and require the removal of over 20

         16  trees, vacating the waterfront will allow the

         17  connection of the East River Promenade and the

         18  Harlem River Park, a long-time goal of the Manhattan

         19  Greenway Project around the borough. I'm here to

         20  answer any questions you have about the project.

         21                 I'm also joined by Alana Davis of my

         22  staff, and Andre DeLeon. I have a photo, if that

         23  will help you, of an aerial shot showing everything.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Did you want to

         25  bring them up to potentially answer questions? If
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          2  you hands those to the sergeant, he'll help you with

          3  those.

          4                 Sorry, but I have to ask you to speak

          5  into the mic so it's recorded for the record.

          6                 MR. KLEIN: The white area along the

          7  Harlem Rivera. Andre, if you could point it out.

          8  That's the existing salt pile, and just below this,

          9  the whole road network and ramp structure that

         10  circle ramp are the roads leading to and from the

         11  Triborough Bridge to the FDR and the Harlem River

         12  Drive, and within that, the center of that is where

         13  the salt would be the salt structure would be

         14  constructed.

         15                 So, we'll be moving just a few

         16  hundred feet within the same community district

         17  towards the Wagner Houses away from the waterfront,

         18  and our moving will allow the East River Promenade

         19  to be connected to the Harlem River Park to the

         20  north.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Can you point

         22  out, I know there has been a discussion with the

         23  Council member about the trees. I have a letter that

         24  was sent from the Parks Department regarding the

         25  trees. Can you just point out to us where the trees
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          2  in question are located?

          3                 MR. KLEIN: The trees are currently in

          4  the whole center of the area. There are some along

          5  the roadway. Basically, it's the extension of East

          6  125th Street onto FDR Drive South. So, any trees in

          7  this area will potentially be removed, and we will

          8  be giving to the Parks Department the sum of

          9  $250,000 to pay for replacement trees that will be

         10  planted partly on-site, but mostly through the

         11  community district.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, the

         13  Department of Sanitation has agreed 250, or 350?

         14                 MR. KLEIN: Three-hundred and fifty

         15  thousand.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Three-hundred and

         17  fifty thousand for additional plantings in East

         18  Harlem as restitution for the trees that will be

         19  removed.

         20                 MR. KLEIN: Right. And the location of

         21  those trees would be determined by the Parks

         22  Department in consultation with the Community Board.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. Do any of

         24  my colleagues have questions? Council Member Arroyo.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: And how many
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          2  trees would that buy, the 350? Solely for tree

          3  replacement?

          4                 MR. KLEIN: It's money that would go

          5  to the Parks Department. They would use that to

          6  supplement other monies they have available for

          7  reforestation in Manhattan and in that community

          8  district. It would be hundreds of trees. So 350,000

          9  should be 300 to 400 trees, the cost of the trees

         10  and planting.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: And the

         12  structure will be an enclosed structure? So, right

         13  now when you drive on the FDR you see that salt pile

         14  that extends way beyond the height of the existing

         15  bridge.

         16                 MR. KLEIN: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: How does that

         18  compensate, and how much salt are you going to be

         19  able to keep, given the amount that is currently at

         20  the site?

         21                 MR. KLEIN: We'll have roughly the

         22  same amount of salt that will be kept within the new

         23  site that we had along the river, and it will be

         24  entirely enclosed in a structure, sort of a

         25  tent-like structure that will be sitting on a
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          2  12-foot concrete wall that will surround the pile.

          3                 The pile will be constructed on a

          4  concrete pad covered with asphalt.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: What are the

          6  environment impacts with regards to the run-off, the

          7  rainwater and all that other stuff, that I'm sure

          8  right now is not taken into account, it's out in the

          9  open.

         10                 MR. KLEIN: Well, right now you have a

         11  lot of runoff, obviously. When the salt gets wet,

         12  whether it be rain or snow, it dissolves, so a

         13  portion of the salt is lost every year because it

         14  dissolves and either runs into the river or just

         15  lies on the site, because the salt will be contained

         16  that won't happen at all. It can be dry within a

         17  structure, it will be loaded dry and then spread on

         18  the streets as needed during winter emergencies.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: All right.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And I understand

         22  that getting the salt pile into an enclosed facility

         23  is something that people are excited about.

         24                 Okay, I don't have any further

         25  questions. Thank you very much.

                                                            33

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 And seeing nobody else here to

          3  testify, I'm going to close the hearing on this

          4  item.

          5                 In light of the testimony that we

          6  received today on Land Use item No. 464 and 465, and

          7  because our colleague, Council Member Gerson

          8  couldn't be here today, we're going to lay over the

          9  vote on those two items but ask the Counsel to call

         10  the roll on the other items on the agenda. And I

         11  recommend a favorable vote.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: On Items LU

         13  466, 467 and 468. Chair Lappin.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Aye.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         16  Liu.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         19  Palma.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Yes.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         22  Arroyo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         25  Mendez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Aye.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

          4  five in the affirmative, none in the negative, and

          5  no abstentions, the item passes to the full Land Use

          6  Committee.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, meeting

          8  adjourned. Oh, sorry, I wanted to leave the vote

          9  open for our colleague who is just next door. So,

         10  we'll keep the vote open for ten minutes, then the

         11  meeting will be adjourned.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         13  Martinez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Aye.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         16  Comrie.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes to all.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Vote stands

         19  seven in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         20  abstentions. Item passes to the full Land Use

         21  Committee.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 12:05 p.m.)

         23
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